
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
Monday, November 4, 2019 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

Any person who wishes to address the City Council regarding any item listed on this agenda or any other 
matter that is within its subject matter jurisdiction is invited, but not required, to fill out a public meeting 
speaker card and submit it to the city clerk prior to the oral communications portion of the meeting.  The 
purpose of the card is to ensure that speakers' names are correctly recorded in the meeting minutes and, 
where appropriate, to provide contact information for later staff follow-up. 

 
Copies of this agenda may be obtained prior to the meeting in the Lawndale City Hall foyer.  Copies of staff reports or other 
written documentation relating to each agenda item are available for public inspection in the Lawndale City Hall foyer and the 
public library. Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for clarification regarding individual 
agenda items. 
 

This agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 
 
C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

 
D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 

 
E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
The consent calendar, agenda items 1 through 3, will be considered and acted upon under one motion 
unless a councilmember/commissioner removes individual items for further council/authority 
consideration or explanation. 
 
1. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-1911-050 authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $261,047.01. 

 
2. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – October 21, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
3. Minutes of the Lawndale Housing Authority Regular Meeting – August 5, 2019  

Recommendation: that the Commissioners approve. 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
November 4, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

 

G. ADMINISTRATION 
 
4. Presentation and Discussion of the Proposed Desalination Plant and Final  

Environmental Impact Report 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive the presentation from representatives 
of both the LA Waterkeeper and West Basin Municipal Water District and (b) provide 
further direction to staff regarding the City’s position: in opposition, in support, or take 
no action regarding the proposed Desalination Plant. 

 
5. Budget Update for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive and file the Quarterly Investment 
Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2019; and (b) approve all recommend 
adjustments as detailed in the staff report. 

 
6. Authorize Application For and Receipt of Senate Bill 2 (SB 2) Planning Grants  

Program Funds 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) determine that the consideration of Resolution 
No. 1911-051 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") 
pursuant to Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines; and (b) adopt Resolution No. 1911-
051 authorizing staff to submit an application for grant funding from the SB 2 Planning 
Grants Program. 

 
7. Residential Development Standards and Design Guidelines 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) determine that the consideration of Resolution 
No. 1911-052 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") 
pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; and (b) adopt Resolution No. 
1911-052 approving the Residential Development Standards and Design Guidelines. 

 
H. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 

 
8. Mayor/Councilmember Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

I. CLOSED SESSION 
 
9. Public Employee Appointment 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54957(b), to consider an appointment to the position of City Manager. 
 

10. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one (1) 
case. 

 
LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
11. Conference with Real Property Negotiator 

The Authority will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.8, to enable the commissioners to consider negotiations and to give direction to its 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
November 4, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

 

negotiators regarding that certain real property, 4019 W. 169th Street, APN 4074-016-
015.  The Authority's real property negotiators, its executive director and housing 
director, will seek direction from the commissioners regarding the price and terms for this 
property. 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
November 18, 2019 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on November 4, 2019 was posted not less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1











MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

October 21, 2019 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem James H. Osborne,
Councilmember Pat Kearney, Councilmember Daniel Reid,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Attorney Tiffany J. 
Israel, Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department Lieutenant 
Christopher Lio, Community Services Director Mike Estes, 
Assistant to the City Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette 
Felton, Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes, Finance 
Director Marla Pendleton, Community Development Director 
Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos and 
approximately 15 audience members. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Suarez led the flag salute and Pastor Bob Dobranski, Way to God Church, provided
the inspiration.

C. PRESENTATIONS

1. Senator Bradford’s Office – Legislative Update

Senator Steven Bradford, 35th State Senate District, provided a legislative update for the year 
2018-2019. 

City Council made various comments about the Senator’s Legislative Update relating to 
homelessness and cannabis industry equity.  They also thanked the Senator for attending the City 
Council meeting and providing the update. 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Lieutenant Lio summarized recent law enforcement activities.

E. ITEMS FROM CITY CLERK

City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman made the following announcements: the West Basin
Municipal Water Districts 24th Annual Water Festival; the Annual Lawndale Halloween Haunt
Event; 4th Annual Field of Honor; that the City was accepting applications for the Media and
Technology Advisory Committee; and the Centinela Valley Union High School District was
accepting applications for its Citizens Oversight Board.

2



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
October 21, 2019 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
F. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
• Edgar Murillo, Resident, spoke about public safety and the need for the City to become a 2nd 

amendment sanctuary City. 
 

• Johnny Castro, Resident, requested to receive a Metro Rail Green Line update. 
 
• Regina Brown, Resident, requested to receive a Metro Rail Green Line update, noted that she 

had witnessed drug use and homelessness on the metro system, and inquired about rent control 
in L.A. County. 

 
• Jessica Romero, Library Manger, spoke about various Library programs. 
 
• Pam London, Resident, thanked the Sheriff’s Department for assisting a stalled vehicle, she then 

spoke about parking and permitting issues throughout the City and in her neighborhood. 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 

 
The City Council responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of any issues 
on a future meeting agenda. 
 

H. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
2. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the 

agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
3. Service Order with Spectrum (formerly Time Warner) to upgrade the Dedicated  

Internet Access and Ethernet Private Line Service (Transport Line) between City 
Hall and Public Works/City Yard 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the service order with Spectrum for 
upgraded bandwidth on Dedicated Internet Access and Ethernet Private Line Service 
(Transport Line) between City Hall and Public Works/City Yard, for a five year term for 
an amount not to exceed $17,700.00 annually. 
 

4. Accounts Payable Register 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-1910-049, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $1,006,581.96. 

 
5. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – October 1, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 
6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – October 7, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Suarez to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
October 21, 2019 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
I. ADMINISTRATION 

 
7. Budget Update for the Quarter/Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive and file the Quarterly Budget Report 
for the quarter ended June 30, 2019; and (b) approve and direct the Finance Department 
to make the recommended FY 2018-2019 year-end adjustments including: 
 

• General Fund net increase in estimated revenue   $566,000.00 
(Page 2 of the Staff Report) 

• Operating Fund Transfer from the General Fund to Gas Tax Fund $86,543.00 
(Page 9 of the Staff Report) 

• Use of Unrestricted Fund Balance – General Fund for prior year negative fund 
balances (Page 9 of the Staff Report)     $186,647.00 

 
Finance Director Marla Pendleton reported on the proposed Budget Update for the Quarter/Year 
Ended June 30, 2019. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osborne, inquired about the how the prior methodology worked when analyzing 
fund reserves.  City Attorney Tiffany Israel explained how the prior reporting and analysis was 
incorrect. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles, inquired about the various accounts that had budget over-runs.  Finance 
Director Pendleton went over the funds/accounts that had over-run their budgets, noted that she 
brought forward the imbalances to ensure that future budgeted accounts were balanced. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Suarez to a receive and file the Quarterly Budget Report for the 
quarter ended June 30, 2019 and approve and direct the Finance Department to make the 
recommended FY 2018-2019 year-end adjustments was seconded by Councilmember 
Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
8. Amending Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter  8.80, Residential Property Report  

Requirements in the City of Lawndale – 2nd Reading and Adoption 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1164-19, amending Chapter 8.80 of the Municipal Code, modifying the  Residential 
Property  Report requirements from mandatory to voluntary, with the exception of garage 
inspections. 

  
Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the proposed amendment to 
Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 8.80, Residential Property Report Requirements in the City 
of Lawndale. 

 
Municipal Services Department Director Michael Reyes clarified the enforcement and inspection 
component of the Residential Property Report inspection, he noted that visible violations during 
the inspection would still be enforced. 

 
Councilmember Suarez, spoke about the need for inspection reports to be voluntary, listed the 
various State laws that were recently passed to support Accessory Dwelling Units, and the history 
of the inspection reports. 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
October 21, 2019 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 

A dialogue ensued between staff and Council regarding the Accessory Dwelling Units process, the 
future of that process, and the continued enforcement of building and safety codes. 

 
 Public Comment 
  

Pam London, Resident, spoke about illegal construction and conversions in the City and stated 
that these issues would never be caught if not for the residential property report. 
 
Randal Abram, Resident, spoke about this ordinance being a good compromise rather than 
making the entire Residential Property Report optional. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 4-1, Councilmember Suarez voting No, 
following City Attorney Israel's reading of the title of Ordinance No. 1164-19. 
 
9. Review of City Council Policy 102-19, “Parkway Design Policy Guidelines” 

Recommendation: that the City Council review and discuss City Council Policy 102-19, 
“Parkway Design Policy Guidelines” and provide direction to staff accordingly. 

 
Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the review of City Council Policy 
102-19, “Parkway Design Policy Guidelines” and provided a PowerPoint presentation. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding the percentage of landscape to 
hardscape, feedback from residents, enforcement of illegal parkways, the height requirements of 
certain plants, taking into account plant growth, and contractor verses home owner permitting 
requirements. 
 
Public Comment 
  
Pam London, Resident, spoke about her prior parkway construction and the permitting process of 
that parkway.   
 
A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Osborne to direct staff to include a ratio of 75% landscape to 
25% hardscape, a 12 inch maximum height on certain landscape while preserving walkways, 
and to eliminate the requirement of a contractor to perform any work to the parkway, was 
seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 

J. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

10. Renaming of the City’s Annual Music Festival – requested by Councilmember  
Kearney. 
Recommendation: that the City Council discuss the request to agendize the re-naming of 
the annual Music Festival at a future City Council meeting and provide direction to staff. 

 
Assistant to the City Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton reported on the 
proposed renaming of the City’s Annual Music Festival. 

 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
October 21, 2019 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

Councilmember Kearney spoke about his reasons for wanting to change the current festival to a 
diverse music selection. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Osborne provided a background of the Lawndale Blues Festival and its current 
form. 

 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between the Council and staff regarding the continuation of the 
Lawndale Blues Festival, potential for multiple or alternative events, attendance and engagement 
of the Blues Festival. 

 
Community Services Director Mike Estes briefly overviewed events that have been suggested in 
the past. 

 
The dialogue continued between the Council and staff regarding exploring other events, a 
possible survey of the resident’s preference, costs of additional events, music selection, and 
sponsorships. 

 
City Council reached a general consensus to direct staff to conduct a survey of the 
community to identify event and music preferences. 
  
11. Mayor/Councilmember Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Reid had nothing to report. 
 
Councilmember Kearney attended South Bay Workforce Investment Board Annual Awards Dinner, 
Beacon Awards Dinner, League of California Cities Annual Conference, and the Fort MacArthur 
Centennial event. 
 
Councilmember Suarez had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Osborne attended League of California Cities Annual Conference and the Fort 
MacArthur Centennial event. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles attended L.A. County Sanitation District Meeting, League of California Cities 
Annual Conference, Beacon Awards Dinner, a Housing Seminar, a Municipal Finance Seminar, and 
the South Bay Workforce Investment Board Annual Awards Dinner. 
 

K. CLOSED SESSION 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles removed item 12 from the agenda. 
 
At 8:24 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session. 
 
12. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one (1) 
case. 

  



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
October 21, 2019 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 

13. Public Employee Performance Evaluation and Compensation 
The City Council will hold a closed session with the City's Personnel Officer, the Interim 
City Manager, pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957 and 54957.6(a), to conduct 
an employee performance evaluation of the City Attorney and to discuss the 
compensation provided to the City Attorney. 

 
At 8:44 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 
City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council was updated on the item 
number 13 and there was no reportable action taken. 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 11/4/2019 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

August 5, 2019 

Note: Lawndale Housing Authority Agenda was combined with the August 5, 2019 Regular City Council 
Agenda and Meeting 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.  The commissioners met concurrently with the City Council.
Commissioners Present: Chairperson Robert Pullen-Miles, Vice Chairperson Daniel Reid,

Commissioner James H. Osborne and Commissioner Bernadette 
Suarez 

Commissioners Absent: Commissioner Pat Kearney 

Other Participants: Secretary Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, Executive Director Stephen N. 
Mandoki, General Counsel Tiffany Israel, Finance Officer Marla 
Pendleton, Director of Housing Sean Moore 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Osborne led the flag salute and Pastor George Magdalany, Hope Chapel, provided
the inspiration.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

No oral communications specific to the Lawndale Housing Authority.

E. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS

No comments specific to the Lawndale Housing Authority.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

10. Updated Authorization to participate in the State Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF)
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. LHA-1908-01, authorizing
investment of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund.

11. Minutes of the Housing Authority Regular Meeting – June 17, 2019
Recommendation: that the Commissioners approve.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Osborne to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Mayor Pullen-Miles and carried by a vote of 4-0, Councilmember Kearney was absent. 

H. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS

No items specific to the Lawndale Housing Authority.

3



Minutes - Lawndale Housing Authority Regular Meeting 
August 5, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

J. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the meeting was adjourned at 7:22 p.m.

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, Secretary  

Approved: 11/04/2019 



4



2 

Proposed Desalination Plant/Final Environmental Impact Report 
November 4, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF REVIEW 
The 1,431 page final environmental impact report is extensive.  West Basin Municipal Water District has 
attempted to address the environmental issues and respond to comments. 

Both Water Keepers and West Basin Municipal Water District have confirmed that they will be present at 
tonight’s meeting to make comment about the Final Environmental Impact Report and provide their perspective 
and concerns to the City Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the City Council receive the presentations from both Water Keepers and West Basin Municipal 
Water District. 

Based on the information, presentations and discussions, the City Council may wish to take one of the 
following actions:  opposition the proposed ocean desalination plant, support the proposed ocean 
desalination plant, or take no action. 

 Attachments: 

1. West Basin Municipal Water District – Ocean Water Desalination Project FAQ
2. LA Waterkeeper – Information and Background Materials on the expected effects of the West 

Basin Desalination Project 



1. West Basin Municipal Water 
District – Ocean Water 
Desalination Project FAQ



Why is West Basin considering ocean water desalination?1
Southern California is an arid region that averages 14 
inches of rain every year. Water supply reliability and 
con�dence in our water resources is critical to this 
region’s economy and quality of life. The need for a 
locally controlled water supply has grown due to the 
increased frequency and duration of droughts, 
periodic restrictions on imported water and 
uncertainties surrounding climate change.

To ensure water supply reliability for our customers 
and communities in our service area, the West Basin 
Municipal Water District has developed a goal to 
achieve a diverse water supply portfolio, as detailed in 
the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. For West 
Basin, water supply reliability can be achieved by: 
reducing dependence on imported water; increasing 
water conservation; expanding recycled water 
production; and developing a locally-controlled, 
drought-proof water supply.

Presently, in pursuing the District’s mission to provide a 
safe and reliable supply of high-quality water to the 
communities it serves, West Basin is examining ocean 
water desalination as a new potable supply. This 
source would further diversify the District’s water 
supply portfolio, which already includes recycled water 
production, water conservation programs, 
groundwater replenishment and imported water 
purchases. This new source of drinking water would 
enhance regional water reliability, especially during 
periods of drought and water scarcity (e.g., loss of 
snowpack in the Sierra Nevada Mountains, 
catastrophic interruptions of water supply and 
uncertain impacts of climate change).

Ocean Water 
Desalination Project

Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQs)

1© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



Potential Local Potable 
Desalination*
(West Basin)

Non-potable 
Recycled Water

(West Basin)

11%

39%
18%

13%

19%

Imported Potable Water
(West Basin)

Groundwater
(Cities + Retailers)

Conservation
(West Basin + Retailers)

Targeted 2030 Water Supply Portfolio

What is the West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project?
The potential Ocean Water Desalination Project (Project) 
would produce approximately 20 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of drinking water from the ocean. The 20 MGD 
capacity facility (Local Project) would generate 
approximately 21,500 acre-feet per year of high-quality 
drinking water to meet local demands. 

A 20 MGD ocean water desalination facility could add 
approximately 10% of new reliable water to the service 
area, further diversifying the District’s water supply  
portfolio and enhancing water security for those the 
District serves.

The potential Project would include a low velocity, 
screened intake system to deliver ocean water to the 
facility, reverse osmosis membrane technology, a brine 
discharge di�user system to return concentrated 
seawater back to the ocean, and a drinking water 
delivery system to distribute drinking water to the 
local and regional water supply systems.

2

Note: Parenthesis indicates the entity/entities that control the specified 
water supply.(Reference: 2015 Urban Water Management Plan)
*10% of potential Project and ~1% of brackish groundwater 

CURRENT WATER SUPPLY

55%
19%

16%

9%

TODAY

Projected

2030

2© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal

Brackish 
Groundwater 
Desalination

Groundwater

Imported

Conservation

Recycled

1%



What are the objectives of the Project?
The Project is being explored as one component of the District’s mission to provide a safe and reliable water to the 
communities it serves through the following objectives:

• Increase local control of water supplies and 
infrastructure

• Improve the District’s ability to control water costs 
and provide long term price stability

• Develop a potable water supply that is cost 
e�ective and environmentally responsible

West Basin is looking into solutions to address 
conditions that may impact water supply reliability 
such as drought, regulatory uncertainty, climate 
change and natural disasters. Drought and climate 
change continue to have a profound impact on 
California’s water resources, as seen in dramatic 
�uctuations in snowpack size, river �ows and 
groundwater levels.

The California Department of Water Resources predicts 
that by the end of the century, Sierra Nevada 
Mountains will experience a 48-65% loss in snowpack. 
This is signi�cant, as mountain snowpack from Central 
and Northern California provides as much as a third of 
California’s water supply by accumulating snow during 
winter and releasing it slowly during the spring and 
summer. As temperatures continue to rise, snow will 
melt faster and earlier, which will make the water from 
it di�cult to store and use as a reliable water supply in 
Southern California.

Why is desalination important for the region?4

The potential Project site would be at an existing 33-acre industrially zoned location within the El Segundo Generating 
Station at 301 Vista del Mar in the City of El Segundo, California. Today, the site houses a heavy industrial power 
generation facility. The potential desalination plant is considered a light industrial facility. 

Where will the Project be located?3

5

In addition, several factors are a�ecting the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Bay Delta, which is a key 
source of water for the State Water Project. Sea level 
rise, early snow melt �ooding, and prolonged drought 
each present challenges to managing the delicate 
ecosystem in the Delta. These factors along with 
regulations needed to protect the ecosystem have led 
to reduced water deliveries to Central and Southern 
California (including West Basin) in three of the past 
eight years.

Our current water supply  is vulnerable to climate 
change and to potential infrastructure failures caused 
by natural disasters such as earthquakes. These 
challenges have reinforced the importance of 
reducing the need for imported water and increasing 
locally-controlled, drought-proof, potable water 
supplies in the West Basin service area.

• Diversify the District’s water supply portfolio to 
increase reliability in the near and intermediate 
term (5-15 years) and long term (15-30 years), 
while reducing reliance on imported water

• Improve ability to adapt by developing a water 
supply that is less vulnerable to climate variations

Project Location:
301 Vista del Mar, El Segundo, California

3© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



How does desalination work?

What ocean water desalination experience does West Basin have?
For more than 15 years, West Basin has researched 
ocean water desalination issues related to the 
operation and incorporation of desalinated ocean 
water into its existing water supply. In 2002, West Basin 
initiated a Desalination Pilot Project (Pilot Project) at 
the El Segundo Generating Station. The data collected 
during the Pilot Project led to the development of the 
Ocean Water Desalination Demonstration Facility 
(OWDDF) at the Science, Education, and Adventure Lab 
(SEA Lab) in Redondo Beach. The OWDDF conducted 
larger-scale testing and operated continuously from 
October 2011 to December 2014.  These e�orts led to 
the development of a comprehensive 2013 Ocean 
Water Desalination Program Master Plan (PMP), which 
o�ered a full-scale design, permitting and operations 

The ocean water desalination process involves removal of dissolved salts and impurities to produce clean water for 
human use and consumption. The potential ocean water desalination Project would involve the following steps:

Intake: Ocean water passes through open ocean 
screened intake specially designed to minimize 
impact to marine life with an opening that would 
not exceed 1 mm. Water is taken into the system at 
a velocity less than 0.5 feet per second (fps) 
ensuring minimal marine life impingement. The 
screens will be designed in accordance with the 
2015 California Ocean Plan Amendment for 
desalination.

Media Filtration: Filters remove coarse materials 
from the water, such as sand and sea shell pieces.

Membrane Filtration: Fine membranes remove 
the microscopic material in the ocean water, such 
as bacteria.

Reverse Osmosis: The �ltered water is pumped 
under high pressure through reverse osmosis (RO) 
membranes to purify it, removing salt, minerals and 
any remaining viruses. This results in water that 
meets or surpasses state and federal drinking water 
requirements. The discarded salt water is referred to 
as brine.

a

b

c

d

e

f

Post-Treatment: Due to the pure water quality 
that results from the RO process, minerals are 
added back to the water to stabilize it and prevent 
water pipes from corroding. The water is then 
disinfected so it is safe for drinking.

Brine Disposal: The brine from the RO process is 
returned to the ocean where it reaches ambient 
salinity levels between 45 to 63 feet from the 
discharge point (depending on �nal design and 
operations) to minimize impacts on marine life. 
This avoids the creation of salt plumes or 
oxygen-starved areas on the sea�oor. The 2015 
Ocean Plan prescribes 328 feet to reach ambient 
salinity levels, but the Project discharge would be 
well below that threshold (45 to 63 feet).

6

7

c

d

f

b
e

a

approach for incorporating ocean water desalination 
into the West Basin water supply portfolio. The PMP 
contains a detailed analysis of over 2000 pages of 
desalination technical studies and can be viewed 
under “Project Materials” at: www.westbasindesal.com

4© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



The desalination process produces high-quality drinking water. The quality 
of desalinated water surpasses all state and federal drinking water 
standards, based on the data reported by similar facilities across the world 
as well as thousands of water quality tests conducted during the 
District-led pilot and full-scale equipment demonstration studies 
(2002-2014). 

Since 2002, West Basin has taken a responsible, 
science-based approach to its Ocean Water Desalination 
Program to protect marine life, maximize energy e�ciency 
and minimize cost by engaging experts in this �eld.

The West Basin proposed wedge-wire, ocean screened 
intake will protect marine life through a screen barrier with 
slots less than 1mm wide. This width is less than the 
thickness of a single penny.  Water will also be drawn into 
the intake system at a very slow velocity of less than 0.5 fps. 
Marine life will also be protected by designing an e�ective 
brine discharge and dilution system that will prevent 
concentrated areas of salt – or salt plumes. This site-speci�c 
design, as well as the local currents action will accelerate the 

brine dilution process. The analysis of potential 
impacts to marine life are included in the Draft EIR 
and possible mitigation measures will be detailed in 
the Final EIR. 

 

Producing one acre-foot of desalinated ocean water currently requires more energy than importing a similar amount 
of water due to the high water pressure required for the advanced puri�cation process.  However, advancements in 
membrane technology, high-e�ciency pumps and energy recovery systems are making ocean water desalination 
more energy e�cient.  For instance, ocean water desalination plants in Santa Barbara and Carlsbad have been 
successful in reducing their energy consumption by using such devices.  Many similar facilities are also taking 
advantage of available renewable energy as more environmentally sustainable power sources, such as solar and wind 
power, become more readily available as part of the energy grid.

West Basin is committed to evaluating all energy sources, including renewable energy, to power the Project and 
achieve a net carbon neutral portfolio. Additional details and opportunities for energy e�ciency will be provided in 
more detail if the Project moves into the design phase.

Where is ocean water desalination used?
Ocean water desalination has been used around the 
world successfully for decades, with over 18,000 facilities 
currently operating in 150 countries including Saudi 
Arabia, Israel, Australia, Japan, Italy, Spain, Portugal, India, 
and South Africa. The largest facility is in Saudi Arabia, 
which produces over 270 million gallons of fresh water 
per day. The United States has hundreds of desalination 

plants and groundwater desalters, some of which have 
been operating for decades. Two desalination plants are 
in operation in Carlsbad and Santa Barbara. Another 
plant located on Catalina Island uses desalination to 
provide water during severe drought conditions. Across 
the world, it is estimated that desalination produces 
over 21 billion gallons of drinking water a day to more 
than 300 million people.

8

What is the quality of desalinated water?9

How will the Project a�ect marine life?10

How much energy does desalination require?11

5© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



West Basin is sensitive to delivering a cost-e�ective 
project that will enhance water security and price 
stability into the future. Currently, the District is 
conducting  a cost bene�t analysis and rate study for 
the potential Project that is expected to be completed 

How much will the facility cost, and how will it a�ect water rates?
in 2020. This analysis will be publicly presented as a 
part of the design approvals and will be consistent 
with the Project objective of increasing West Basin’s 
ability to control future drinking water costs.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) published 
in the spring of 2018 evaluated the possible impacts of 
constructing and operating the potential Project and 
identi�ed mitigation strategies to avoid, minimize, or 
compensate for impacts. The District received 213 
comments and letters from agencies, municipalities, 
interested groups, and the general public. A Final EIR 
has been prepared that provides detailed responses to 
each comment received in accordance

with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). If 
the Final EIR is certi�ed by the West Basin Board of 
Directors, and the potential Project is approved, it will 
then advance to the permit approval phase in which the 
District will be required to meet the regulations and 
compliance requirements of local, regional, state and 
federal agencies. The West Basin Municipal Water District 
will be conducting a Special Board of Directors Meeting 
for EIR certi�cation consideration on Monday, November 
18, 2019 at 3:00 pm at the Carson Event Center, 
Community Hall A, 801 E. Carson St., Carson, CA 90745.

How will the Project a�ect greenhouse gas emissions?
The Project will be consistent with Assembly Bill 32 
(AB32) greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction goals on both a 
Project level and a District-wide water supply portfolio 
level. The Project’s potential e�ects on global climate 
change, including construction-related and operational 
GHG emissions, have been evaluated in the Draft EIR.  
West Basin has committed to reducing the additonal

GHG emissions through methods that include carbon 
o�sets. The Project will also strive to meet the State’s 
continued e�orts to reduce GHG emissions, which the 
State has currently set to 80 percent below 1990 levels 
by 2050 (Senate Bill 350).

12

13

What phase is the Project in?14

6© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal

1 2

Initiate
Scoping
Process

Public Review and 
Comment Period

30 Days

Public Review and 
Comment Period

91 Days

Prepare
Draft EIR

Prepare
Responses to

Comments

Certi�cation
Process

Notice of
Availability

Public
Meeting

Notice of
Determination

El Porto 
Community 

Meeting

NOP Draft
EIR

Final
EIR

3

Public
Meeting

Public
Scoping
Meeting

Agencies & 
Interested 

Parties 
Meeting

Environmental 
Community 

Meeting



Ocean water desalination projects in California require detailed coordination and permitting from numerous local, 
regional, state and federal agencies.   The California Ocean Plan, a set of standards created by the State Water Resources 
Control Board to protect the quality of the ocean waters, speci�cally addresses design requirements for ocean water 
desalination facilities. West Basin is actively working with agencies to explore a facility that meets and surpasses the 
State’s strict environmental protection goals, while enhancing water supply reliability and by reducing the region’s 
dependence on imported water supplies.

West Basin has been engaged with the following Federal and State Agencies on the Project: California Coastal 
Commission; California Energy Commission; California Department of Fish and Wildlife; California State Lands 
Commission; California State Parks; Division of Boating and Waterways; Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control 
Board; National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration; National Marine Fisheries Service; State Water Resources 
Control Board – Division of Drinking Water; United States Army Corps of Engineers; and United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service as well as local community leaders.

The Final EIR will include:

a. The Draft EIR 

               Topics evaluated in Draft EIR include:

 Aesthetics, Light and Glare
 Air Quality
 Biological Resources – Terrestrial
 Cultural Resources
 Energy
 Geology and Soils
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

 Hydrology and Water Quality
 Land Use and Planning
 Marine Biological Resources
 Noise
 Public Services
 Recreation
 Transportation and Tra�c
 Utilities and Service Systems

What will be included in the Final EIR?15

What agencies would be required to permit the Project?16

b. Comments and recommendations received on the Draft EIR 
c. A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft EIR
d. Prepared responses to the submitted questions and comments
e. Any other information added by the Lead Agency (the District)

7© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



8

West Basin Municipal Water District
17140 S. Avalon Blvd.,
Carson, CA 90746

For More Information, Contact Us At:

desaleir@westbasin.org
www.westbasin.org/desal
(310) 660-6200

© 2019 West Basin Municipal Water District  |  www.westbasin.org/desal



2. LA Water Keeper – 
Information and Background 
Materials on the expected 
effects of the West Basin 
Desalination Project



The West Basin Board



DESALDON’TWe want

Desal wastes money.
Desalinated ocean water costs twice as much as a gallon 
of imported water and up to  three times as much as  
stormwater. Ratepayers will be footing the bill for this plant 
for decades to come. We can’t afford ocean desalination.

Desal wastes energy.
Every other source of water — even imported water — 
is more energy efficient. In the face of climate  
change, we can do better than ocean desal.

$

$

$

Desal wastes time.
This project takes resources away from 
more energy-efficient, cost-effective & 
environmentally-beneficial water supplies  
for our region, such as recycled water.  
Now is the time for smart investments,  
NOT ocean desal. 

captur

Rainwater 
capture and 
useof purified

wastewater

Water 
Recycling

Desal is 
dangerous.
Intake pipes suck up more than 
seawater — they also suck up marine 
life. In addition, the byproduct of 
ocean desalination is a salty 
brine that can be toxic  
when dumped back  
into the ocean.

SMARTERWATERLA.ORG

$
$

$

Ocean Desalination  
(12,000 - 18,000 kWh/million gallons)

m3)

 
 

 

 

 Imported Water (Colorado River)  
(6,100 kwH/million gallons)

Wastewater Recycling (potable) 
(3,300 - 8,300 kwH/million gallons)

Groundwater 
(500 - 3,500 kwH/million gallons)

Wastewater Recycling (non-potable) 
(1,000 - 3,500 kwH/million gallons)



            
 

New Sources for California’s Water Supply 

 

Select Committee Report of March 2016 

 
Richard S. Gordon, Chair 

 
Katcho Achadjian Autumn Burke Miguel Santiago 

Luis Alejo Rocky J. Chávez Anthony Rendon 
 Young Kim  

 
Nuriel Moghavem, Committee Staff 

 
 

California State Assembly Select Committee on 
Water Consumption and Alternative Sources 



1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
California could have enough water. In the midst of an historic drought, with reservoirs and 
groundwater basins reaching their lowest recorded levels, it may seem that California simply 
doesn’t have the water it needs to meet its thirsty urban, agricultural and environmental needs. 
However, the successful response to Governor Edmund G. Brown’s April 2015 Executive 
Order B-29-15, ordering 25% water conservation statewide, and the potential to expand 
stormwater capture, water recycling and perhaps desalination all show that California could 
have all the water it needs – we just need proper planning and investments to use our 
water more efficiently and wisely.   

The Assembly Select Committee on Water Consumption and Alternative Sources was 
established in February 2015 to examine the strategies California could take to improve water 
conservation and expand the portfolio of water sources. Given that California rose to the 
challenge of conservation, the committee turned its attention to alternative water source 
strategies such as stormwater capture, ocean desalination and water recycling, holding 
specific hearings to discuss the latter two in greater detail.  

All this was considered through the lens of a changing climate in California, one that is set to 
be warmer overall with faster fluctuations between El Niño and La Niña periods of wet and dry. 
Periodic droughts and floods may be our new normal, and the state might have to decrease its 
reliance on snowpack filling our reservoirs. We will therefore need to better utilize alternative 
water sources to keep our cities and farms hydrated.   

This report is the culmination of several hearings held across the state on issues of water use 
and opportunities for expanding water sources. It includes summaries of expert testimony at 
those hearings, including illustrative slides from their presentations, as well as a list of key 
findings and recommendations compiled by committee staff and approved by the Chair. These 
findings and recommendations were not voted on by members of the Select Committee and 
may not reflect the view of each Select Committee member.  This report is meant to provide 
knowledge regarding California’s drought, climate change future, and viability of water sourcing 
strategies including stormwater capture, water recycling and desalination. This knowledge will 
be essential in adapting California’s water infrastructure to climate changes and devising the 
most effective and environmentally friendly approach to endure the next California drought.  
 
The committee webpage can be found at the URL below and includes background documents 
for each hearing, speaker biographies, and the slides presented by the experts during their 
presentation: 
http://asmdc.org/members/a24/other-resources/select-committee-on-water-consumption-and-alternative-sources 

 
 



2 

 

KEY FINDINGS 
 
The following are key findings that highlight the important takeaways from the Select 
Committee’s three hearings. 
 
• Hot droughts are our future.   California has long experienced intermittent periods of wet 

and dry but about half of past droughts coincided with colder weather. Climate change 
trends suggest that all droughts in the future will be hot ones, increasing their severity and 
the need for water sources not reliant on snowpack. 
 

• California’s response to Governor Brown’s conservation mandate was critical and 
impressive, but it won’t be enough. Conservation represents the best method to improve 
California’s water security: it is rapid, effective and free. But for California’s environmental, 
agricultural and urban needs to be met, new water sources will need to be developed.  
 

• Not all alternative water source options are equal. While the California Water Plan 
recommends an “all of the above” strategy for improving the diversity of California’s water 
portfolio, the scientific consensus is that some options are more reliable, cheaper and less 
energy-intensive than others. Regions looking to invest in new water sources should do so 
with diligence, considering energy costs and local impacts in their analyses. 
 

• Centralization and decentralization of water recycling are both strong water source 
options, but there is a tension between them. On-site reuse is a decentralized water 
conservation strategy that could yield substantial water savings to the state in conjunction 
with centralized water projects. However, increased decentralization will present challenges 
to centralized water systems that depend on revenues to pay for fixed infrastructure costs 
and sewer systems that depend on high levels of water flow to move sewage. 

 
• Greater potable reuse of recycled water will be critical to California’s water future. 

Indirect potable reuse is occurring in California now and is set to expand. The feasibility of 
regulating direct potable reuse is currently being studied by the State Water Resources 
Control Board and, if allowed, could be a strategy to use water more effectively.  
 

• Stormwater capture is an important way to generate new water, but currently faces 
substantial financing challenges. Proposition 218 currently limits local agencies’ abilities 
to generate funding necessary to build and operate stormwater capture systems, making it 
difficult to take advantage of this valuable water source.  
 

• Innovations in the water sector are scarce.   While high costs of energy and State 
support for research spurred innovation in the energy sector, the fact that water remains 
underpriced and the state has not invested in water research has led to a stifled 
environment for water technology innovations.  

rebecca
Highlight



3 

 

POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
• California should pursue a diverse water portfolio. The California Water Action Plan’s 

strategy of promoting a multitude of water sources for our state is the right approach, and 
underscores that the diversity of our state necessitates a diversity of solutions. 
 

• Improve elements of California’s water management, particularly with data collection 
and dissemination. The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act will vastly improve 
our understanding of California’s water, but the lack of a common water accounting 
framework between state agencies could be limiting our ability to study it and develop new 
innovative solutions based on our deeper scientific understanding.  
 

• Proposition 1 funding should be directed at projects suited for California’s changing 
climate . In the next several years, billions in bond sales authorized by 2014’s Proposition 1 
will be allocated to water projects. Those that reduce greenhouse gases, improve storage 
capacity in a warm climate, and are not at risk due to sea level rise should be favored.  

 
• Desalination should be used as an option of last resort. Nearly the totality of the 

testimony between our several hearings agreed that desalination should only be 
considered after a region has been successful with conservation and has embarked on 
substantial water reclamation projects as well. Approved projects should be well-sited, well-
sized, and minimize environmental impacts to the extent possible.  

 
• Educate the public about potable reuse of water, especially direct potable reuse.  

Expert testimony at our hearings relayed that the scientific and public health communities 
are approving of the current approach to direct potable reuse. Public perception remains a 
major barrier to implementation, though data shows improved acceptance with education. 

• Adopt regulations for potable reuse. The State Water Board will issue its regulatory 
recommendations for indirect potable reuse and its feasibility study for regulation of direct 
potable reuse by the end of the year. To speed the implementation of potable reuse in 
urban California, the legislature should adopt recommendations of those reports. 

  
• Develop new financing methods and incentives for stormwater capture. Creating 

incentives for local agencies that capture stormwater may open up new avenues for 
financing reclamation projects to secure this valuable water source. 

 
• The state should provide support for water innovation research and deployment. The 

solar power industry expanded in California because of our support for research and 
commitment to the deployment of solar power technology. This has been a major boon for 
the state in both the reduction of greenhouse gases and in the creation of thousands of 
green jobs. California could become a leader in water technology using similar methods.  

rebecca
Highlight



 

 

 

Excerpt from West Basin Ocean 

Water Desalination Project 

Draft Environmental Impact 

Report 



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-9 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

increase only minimally (approximately 0.4 percent annually) through 2040, so additional 
supplies are not required to support any increase in demand.  

While the Project would provide a new water source within West Basin’s service area, it would 
replace imported water distribution through the service area and therefore would not induce 
future growth. Rather, as a project to support future reliability by creating a new local water 
source, the Project would accommodate existing demand and a very small (0.4 percent) annual 
increase in demand such that water infrastructure reliability would not be an impediment to 
already planned growth. As a water supply agency, West Basin has no authority over the approval 
of General Plans that forecast population increases. Additionally, the Project would be 
implemented in phases to ensure the new supply is appropriately keeping up with population 
growth. As a result, the Project neither supports nor encourages growth within West Basin’s 
service area to a greater degree than presently estimated by the 2015 UWMP and land use 
agencies with jurisdiction over the Project area. Similarly, the Regional Project would be 
implemented consistent with regional water management planning of participating jurisdictions. 
The Project would not remove any obstacles to growth and would not indirectly have a significant 
impact on growth inducement. As a result, impacts to growth inducement would be less than 
significant. 

6.3 Environmental Justice 

The following section discusses the environmental justice issues pertaining to the Project and 
evaluates the potential for the Project to disproportionately affect minority and low-income 
populations. Data presented in this section was obtained from two data sets from the U.S. Census 
Bureau 2011–2015 American Community Survey (ACS) 5-year estimates. 

6.3.1 Regulatory Setting 
Federal 

The National Environmental Project Act (NEPA) and CEQA-Plus procedures outlined in the 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) financing guidelines include compliance with Executive Order 
12898 (59 Fed. Reg. 32) (February 16, 1994), which outlines federal actions to address 
environmental justice in minority populations and low-income populations. 

Executive Order 12898 states that agencies shall identify and address disproportionately high and 
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations. A new 
interagency Federal Working Group on Environmental Justice was created in 1994 to develop 
strategies for programs and policies regarding minority and low-income populations to promote 
enforcement of all health and environmental statutes, improve research and data collection in 
relation to health and environment, identify different patterns of consumption of natural 
resources, and ensure greater public participation. 

breznik
Highlight



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-10 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

6.3.2 Environmental Setting 
Population 

The Project facilities including distribution facilities are located in the city of El Segundo, city of 
Hawthorne, and city of Lawndale. The proposed facilities would be located in 17 different census 
tracts throughout these cities within Los Angeles County. However, this analysis focuses on the 
aboveground Project components (i.e., not conveyance facilities) because the environmental 
justice analysis focuses on the permanent impacts to the low-income and minority populations. 
The proposed conveyance pipelines would have temporary construction impacts but would be 
returned to pre-project conditions once in operation so the tracts in which the pipelines would 
occur are not included in the analysis.  

As a result, the city of El Segundo (desalination facility) and the city of Hawthorne (pump 
station) are the only cities where aboveground infrastructure would be implemented. The 
aboveground facilities include the ocean desalination facility and the proposed regional pump 
station (with potential locations in 5 of the 17 tracts: tract 6021,03, 6021.06, 6027, 9800.30, and 
9800.13). The total population of individuals within these census tracts is 15,796. Table 6-2 lists 
all of the census tracts affected by the Local Project and Regional Project facilities and the City of 
Manhattan Beach tract (Tract 6202.01) located adjacent to the proposed desalination plant, using 
data from the 2011–2015 ACS 5-year estimates. The total population of the adjacent tract in 2015 
was 1,446 (U.S. Census Bureau 2017).  

Demographics 

The demographic characteristics of the census tracts affected by the Local and Regional Project 
components are summarized in Table 6-2. The demographic data provided by the U.S. Census is 
organized into four categories: Black (individuals identifying primarily with a Black ethnicity), 
Hispanic (individuals identifying primarily with a Hispanic ethnicity), White (individuals 
identifying primarily with a Non-Hispanic, White ethnicity), and Other (individuals identifying 
primarily with all other ethnicities not aforementioned, as well as those identifying with more 
than one ethnicity). According to the U.S. Census, “minorities” are defined as all individuals that 
are not Non-Hispanic, single-race Whites.  

For purposes of this analysis, an area is considered to have a significantly greater minority 
population if the affected census tract or group of tracts has a minority population at least 
10 percent greater on average than the overall city or census-designated place (CDP). Table 6-2 
includes the demographic data for all cities and census tracts affected by the Project-components.  

According to the U.S. Census Bureau data, the tracts affected by the Project within the city of 
El Segundo do not have populations residing within them so there is no demographic data 
available. The tracts affected by the Project within the city of Hawthorne have a relatively smaller 
minority population (Hispanic) and slightly larger minority population (Black) on average than 
the overall city itself. The city of Hawthorne’s affected tracts have a 7.23 percent higher Black 
population (31 percent) compared to that of the overall city (23.8 percent), while it has a 
1.27 percent lower Hispanic population (53.4 percent) than the overall city (54.7 percent).  



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-11 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

TABLE 6-2 
DEMOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION BY CITY AND CENSUS TRACT 

City/Census Tract Hispanic White Black Other 

City of El Segundo 19% 64.8% 1.3% 14.9% 

Tract 9800.30 - - - - 

Tract 9800.13 - - - - 

Average - - - - 

City of Hawthorne 54.7% 9.8% 23.8% 11.7% 

Tract 6021.03 73.4% 10.7% 11.3% 4.6% 

Tract 6021.06 63.4% 7.3% 18.0% 11.3% 

Tract 6027 23.5% 2.7% 63.8% 10.0% 

Average 53.4% 6.9% 31.0% 8.63% 

City of Manhattan Beach 9.4% 75.3% 0.8% 14.5% 

Tract 6202.01 12.2% 76% 2.7% 9.1% 

SOURCE: Data obtained from US Census Survey, ACS 2011–2015 5-Year Estimates. 

 

Income 

Low income is classified by the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(DHCD) using population and income distribution within each county. For the purposes of this 
analysis, the potentially affected census tracts must have an average median household income at 
least $10,000 below that of the overall city or CDP to be considered significantly lower income. 
Furthermore, as household income classification is dependent on household size, the income 
amount must be equal to or below the low income threshold designated for the average family 
size within the city or CDP. Table 6-3 shows the Los Angeles County median household income 
level classifications for two-, three- and four-person households. Table 6-4 shows the income 
data and poverty status within all affected cities and census tract sets. 

TABLE 6-3 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY AREA MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME CLASSIFICATION IN U.S. DOLLARS 

 2 persons in household 3 persons in household 4 persons in household 

Extremely low income 21,650 24,350 27.050 

Very low income 36,050 40,550 45,050 

Low Income* 57,700 64,900 72,100 

Median Income 51,850 58,300 64,800 

Moderate Income 62,200 70,000 77,750 

*Low income exceeding median income is due to Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) adjustments to the Very Low 
income limit to account for high housing costs. 

SOURCE: Data obtained from California Department of Community Development 2017 State Income Limits 

 



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-12 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

TABLE 6-4 
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME AND POVERTY STATUS BY CITY AND CENSUS TRACT 

City/Census Tract 
Median Household 

Income 

Percent Below 
Poverty Level 
(Individuals) 

City of El Segundo $85,727 7.3% 

Tract 9800.30 - - 

Tract 9800.13 - - 

Average - - 

City of Hawthorne $44,504 20.1% 

Tract 6021.03 $32,632 21.6% 

Tract 6021.06 $43,520 13.1% 

Tract 6027 $77,708 17.7% 

Average $51,287 17.5% 

City of Manhattan Beach $144,868 3.7% 

Tract 6202.01 $116,761 8.4% 

 

As shown in Table 6-4, there is no median household or poverty level data available for the tracts 
affected by the Project within the city of El Segundo because there are no residents living in the 
tracts. 

The affected tracts within the city of Hawthorne shows a slightly higher average median 
household income level compared to the respective overall city data. The city of Hawthorne 
affected tracts’ average median household income differs by $6,783 compared to the rest of the 
city. With an average household size of three persons in the city of Hawthorne, this income level 
is considered “very low income” (DHCD 2017).  

The tract sets mentioned above also show they do not have a significantly higher percent of 
population living below poverty level than the respective city. The city of Hawthorne’s affected 
tracts have a percent of population living below the poverty level that is 2.63 percent lower 
than the overall city. The national poverty level or threshold is determined every year by the 
U.S. Census Bureau. The national average poverty threshold in 2015 for a family of three was 
$18,871 (U.S. Census Bureau 2015).  

6.3.3 Significance Thresholds and Criteria 
For the purposes of this EIR and consistency with NEPA or CEQA-Plus Guidelines, applicable 
local plans, and agency and professional standards, the Proposed Project would be considered to 
have a significant effect on environmental justice if it would: 

 Affect the health or environment of minority or low-income populations 
disproportionately. 



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-13 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

Impacts and Mitigation Measures 

Generally speaking, operation of proposed facilities including desalination facilities and the pump 
station, would not create localized impacts that could negatively affect the surrounding 
environment or community public health (as evidenced in the analyses provided in other sections 
of this EIR). 

Based on all census data presented above, Local Project and Regional Project components in the 
cities of El Segundo and Hawthorne would not be located in areas with significantly larger 
minority and/or low-income populations on average, relative to the overall characteristics of their 
respective cities. The proposed locations of the ocean water desalination facility and pump station 
have been based on criteria such as elevation and proximity and connectivity to existing facilities. 
During operation of the Local and Regional Projects, residential areas would not be significantly 
impacted because the location of the ocean water desalination facility would be within an existing 
power generating facility site.  

Operation of the proposed pump station could occur adjacent to residential areas, but all potential 
locations are on vacant and/or disturbed land. Even though the proposed regional pump station 
could be located within an area of the city of Hawthorne with a higher minority population (Black 
or Hispanic), the area is not considered to have a significantly high minority population because it 
is within 10 percent of the overall city’s minority population percentage. As a result, the census 
data shows that the location of the Local and Regional Project would not be within areas 
significantly characterized by low income or minority populations. Nonetheless, the location of 
such facilities in areas characterized by minority or low income populations would not adversely 
affect the environment or public health of such communities. Impacts are considered less than 
significant.  

6.4 References 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD), 2017. State Income 

Limits for 2017, Prepared June 9, 2017. 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), 2016a. 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan, Draft March 2016.  

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), 2016b. 2015 Integrated Water 
Resources Plan Update, January 12, 2016. 

Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG), 2016. 2016-2040 Regional 
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS), 
http://scagrtpscs.net/Pages/FINAL2016RTPSCS.aspx, Accessed March 8, 2018. 

Southern California Edison (SCE), 2017. 2016 Power Content Label, 
http://www.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/2016_labels/Southern_California_Edison-Default.pdf, 
Accessed March 8, 2018. 

U.S. Census Bureau, 2015. Poverty Thresholds for 2015 by Size of Family and Number of 
Related Children Under 18 Years, Available online at: 

breznik
Highlight



6. Other CEQA Considerations 

West Basin Ocean Water Desalination Project 6-14 ESA / 170766 

Draft Environmental Impact Report  March 2018 

https://www.census.gov/data/tables/time-series/demo/income-poverty/historical-poverty-
thresholds.html, Accessed on November 30, 2017. 

U.S. Census Bureau, 2017. American Fact Finder: 2011-2015 American Community Survey 5 
Year Estimates, Available online at: https://factfinder.census.gov/, Accessed on November 
30, 2017. 

West Basin Municipal Water District (West Basin), 2016. West Basin Municipal Water District 
Draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, May 2016.  

 



 
June 25, 2018 
 
 
Zita Yu, Ph.D., P.E. 
Project Manager 
West Basin Municipal Water District 
17140 South Avalon Boulevard, Suite 210 
Carson, California 90746-1296  
 
 
Sent via e-mail to: DesalEIR@WestBasin.org 
 
 
RE: Environmental Justice, Community, and Indigenous Groups’ Comments on West 
Basin Municipal Water District Ocean Desalination Draft Environmental Impact Report  
 
 
Dear Dr. Yu:  
 
We the undersigned environmental justice, community, and indigenous groups thank you for this 
opportunity to comment on West Basin Municipal Water District’s (West Basin) Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) for the proposed Ocean Water Desalination Project (Project). 
 

              

 
 

 
             

	  
 

 

 

                                    
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

           



	   2 

West Basin’s longstanding and seemingly steadfast commitment to ocean-water desalination 
over less expensive and more energy friendly means of increasing water supply—conservation, 
recycling, stormwater capture, and brackish groundwater desalination—will result in a 
significant and disproportionate impact on low income and minority populations.  The Project 
would produce the most expensive water1 in an unnecessary amount2 for a vast service area that 
encompasses widely disparate communities, the most disadvantaged of which will bear the brunt 
of the Project’s high costs, adverse environmental impacts, and outsized energy use. 
 
The DEIR environmental justice analysis is inadequate for the reasons detailed below.  We also 
find it notable that out of a 1000+ page DEIR, only half of a single page is dedicated to the 
analysis of the Project’s environmental justice impacts and the conclusion that the impacts 
would be less than significant.  (See DEIR, 6-13.) 
 

The Project Will Increase Water Rates and Disproportionately Impact Low-Income 
Populations. 

 
Ocean desalination is the most expensive option for increasing our local water supplies at $2,100 
to $2,500 per acre-foot.3  West Basin estimates the cost to build the Project will be half-a-billion 
dollars.  The Project will inevitably increase water rates for West Basin’s ratepayers.  This 
increase in water rates will disproportionately impact low-income populations in West Basin’s 
service area relative to the more affluent populations.  For example, a $10 increase to water rates 
that seems modest in affluent Rolling Hills Estates has a significantly great impact on a ratepayer 
living below the federal poverty line in Inglewood, Hawthorne, Lawndale, or Gardena, each of 
which 100% of the population is disadvantaged communities.  The DEIR also does not account 
for the cumulative impact on water rates that the Project may have in light of, for example, 
Metropolitan Water District’s commitment to funding the multi-billion-dollar twin-tunnels 
project.4 
 

The Project Will Effectively Result in Disadvantaged Communities Subsidizing Affluent 
Communities’ Excessive Water Consumption. 

 
We applaud West Basin’s significant conservation savings over the past 25 years, but challenge 
the agency’s assertion that demand has hardened to a point that makes it difficult to realize the 
additional savings West Basin claims is needed if the Project is not built.  Such opportunities for 
realizing additional conservation savings are clear when looking at the disparity between West 
Basin’s affluent communities’ and its low-income and minority communities’ residential per 
capita water usage (R-GPCD).  West Basin customers in affluent communities such as Palos 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1 HEATHER COOLEY & RAPICHAN PHURISAMBAN, THE COST OF ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY AND EFFICIENCY 
OPTIONS IN CALIFORNIA 13 (Pac. Inst. 2018), available at  
http://pacinst.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/PI_TheCostofAlternativeWaterSupplyEfficiencyOptionsinCA.pdf. 
2 Comment Letter from Los Angeles Waterkeeper to West Basin Municipal Water District (explaining that the need 
for 21,500 acre-feet a year of new potable water supply is not supported in the DEIR).   
3 COOLEY & RAPICHAN, supra note 1, at 13.  
4 Bettina Boxxall, Southern California Water Votes to Controversial Plan to Build Two Delta Tunnels, LA TIMES 
(Apr. 10, 2018, 8:15 PM), http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-delta-tunnel-mwd-20180410-story.html. 



	   3 

Verdes use upwards of 200 R-GPCD—almost three times the South Coast region average 5— 
while customers in Hawthorne use only 62 R-GPCD, (DEIR, 7-13.).6  Yet, West Basin seeks to 
impose the steep costs of building and operating an ocean desalination plant across its entire 
service area.  This scenario effectively results in low income and minority communities 
subsidizing wealthier communities’ excessive water consumption.   
 
The DEIR Fails to Account for Adverse Impacts to Disadvantaged Communities Outside of 

Hawthorne. 
 
West Basin’s contention that its Project’s impact on disadvantaged communities is less than 
significant does not tell the whole story.  The DEIR only analyzes the Project’s impacts to the 
census tracts where aboveground infrastructure would be implemented (census tracts in El 
Segundo and Hawthorne).  (DEIR, 5-13.)  For Hawthorne, the DEIR compares the demographics 
of the 3 impacted census tracts in Hawthorne to the demographics of the city of Hawthorne as a 
whole.  (DEIR, 6-10–6-11.)  However, in doing so, the DEIR averages the minority population 
percentages of the 3 impacted census tracts before comparing them to the minority population 
percentage of the whole city of Hawthorne, thus diluting the actual minority percentages of the 
individual, impacted tracts.  (DEIR, 6-11.)  This allows the DEIR to find that the impacted 
census tracts do not have significantly greater minority populations, and thus, the Project does 
not disproportionately impact minority populations.  (DEIR, 6-10, 6-13.)   
 
This Hawthorne-to-Hawthorne comparison is disingenuous.  Hawthorne’s population is 100% 
disadvantaged communities (DAC).  The Project would provide a water supply for all customers 
in West Basin’s service area, therefore at a minimum, the DEIR environmental justice analysis 
should look at West Basin’s service area as a whole and assess the impacts of the Project on the 
disadvantaged communities relative to the Project’s impacts on the affluent communities.  
By unreasonably, geographically limiting the environmental justice analysis, the DEIR fails to 
account for the Project’s impacts to Carson, which is 82.1% DAC, Inglewood, which is 
100% DAC, Gardena, which is 100% DAC, and Lawndale, which is 100% DAC.  
 
The DEIR Should Consider the Environmental Justice Impacts of the Project’s Air Quality 

Impacts. 
 

Ocean desalination is the most energy-intensive option for increasing local water supplies.7  The 
continuous energy demand of the 20 MGD desalination plant is equivalent to the average annual 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
5 From July 2017 to August 2017 alone the average residential per capita water use for the South Coast region 
decreased from 69.63 R-GPCD to 65.87 R-GPCD.  (Is California Water Use Increasing? 89.3 KPCC, 
http://projects.scpr.org/applications/monthly-water-use/region/south-coast/.)  
6 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD, August Supplier Conservation, 9, 10 (2017), 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/conservation_portal/docs/2017oct/supplierconservation_10
0317.pdf. 
7 HEATHER COOLEY & MATTHEW HEBERGER, KEY ISSUES IN SEAWATER DESALINATION IN CALIFORNIA: ENERGY 
AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (Pac. Inst. 2013), available at  http://pacinst.org/wp-
content/uploads/2013/05/desal-energy-ghg-full-report.pdf; NAT. RES. DEF. COUNCIL, ET AL., PROCEED WITH 
CAUTION II: CALIFORNIA’S DROUGHTS AND DESALINATION IN CONTEXT (2016), available at 
https://www.nrdc.org/sites/default/files/california-drought-desalination-2-ib.pdf. 



	   4 

energy demand of almost twice the number of households in Lawndale.8  Many of West Basin’s 
low-income and minority customers are among those most disproportionately burdened by 
multiple sources of pollution.9  These communities already suffer from poor air quality.10  
Southern California Edison (SCE) would supply the energy needed by the Project, and while the 
DEIR discusses SCE’s power mix, it does not identify the specific plants on which SCE relies.  
(DEIR, 5.5-6–5.5-7.)  The communities in or near where these plants are located, will be 
disproportionately impacted by the Project’s adverse impacts to air quality.  Yet, the DEIR does 
not disclose which communities these are or analyze the impacts.  
 

The DEIR Should Consider the Environmental Justice Impacts of the Project’s 
Greenhouse Gas Impacts. 

 
Based on the 2014 power mix of SCE,11 the 20 MGD ocean desalination plant would contribute 
as much as 44,702 metric tons of CO2e emissions per year and the 60 MGD plant would 
contribute as much as 146,879 metric tons per year.12  The Project’s significant GHG emission 
contributions will exacerbate climate change, and disproportionately impact low-income and 
minority communities, which are least able to adapt to or recover from climate change 
impacts.13  

 
The DEIR Should Consider the Environmental Justice Impacts of the Project’s Marine 

Impacts. 
 
The Project would use an open-ocean intake and discharge system to draw in ocean water and 
discharge concentrated brine, which has the potential to adversely impact marine life.  The DEIR 
environmental justice analysis fails to discuss the potential impacts this may have on 
communities that rely on marine life for subsistence.   
 
For all of the above reasons, West Basin’s CEQA analysis fails to comply with the Government 
Code14, CEQA, and the California Attorney General’s instructive Fact Sheet, Environmental 
Justice at the Local and Regional Level Legal Background.15 
 
The bottom line is that ocean desalination is not the answer, and we call on West Basin to take a 
step back and see that the Project’s costs overwhelmingly outweigh any benefit, particularly in 
light of the more cost-effective, environmentally sound options available for meeting our water 
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
8 See POWERS ENGINEERING, ASSESSMENT OF ENERGY INTENSITY AND GREENHOUSE EMISSIONS OF PROPOSED WEST 
BASIN DESALINATION PLANT AND WATER SUPPLY ALTERNATIVES 19 (2018), available at 
https://www.smarterwaterla.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Powers_Engineering_2018_WB_Desal.pdf. 
9 CALENVIROSCREEN 3.0, https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30 (last visited June 4, 2018).  
10 Id.  
11 POWERS ENGINEERING, supra note 8, at 16. 
12 POWERS ENGINEERING, supra note 8, at 21.   
13 U.S. GLOBAL CHANGE RESEARCH PROGRAM, THE IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON HUMAN HEALTH IN THE 
UNITED STATES: A SCIENTIFIC ASSESSMENT (2016), available at https://health2016.globalchange.gov/.  
14 “‘[E]nvironmental justice” means the fair treatment of people of all races, cultures, and incomes with respect to 
the development, adoption, implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, regulations, and policies.”  
(Gov. Code, § 65040.12(e).) 
15 OFFICE OF THE CALIFORNIA ATTORNEY GENERAL, ENTVL. JUSTICE AT THE LOCAL AND REG’L LEVEL LEGAL 
BACKGROUND (2012), available at https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/environment/ej_fact_sheet.pdf. 



	   5 

supply needs.  Operation of an ocean desalination plant will have the perverse result of low-
income communities subsidizing West Basin’s most affluent communities’ excessive water 
consumption.  In addition, the Project will adversely impact air quality and contribute to climate 
change impacts on communities that already bear a disproportionate pollution burden.16  West 
Basin should be exploring opportunities for expanding its successful conservation and recycling 
programs and other water supply options that do not compromise the health and economic well-
being of communities.  Ocean desalination should be considered an option of last resort and one 
that West Basin should not be pursuing at this time. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Taylor Thomas 
Research and Policy Analyst 
East Yards Communities for 
Environmental Justice  

Jane Williams  
Executive Director  
California Communities 
Against Toxics 

Cynthia Babich 
Coordinator 
Los Angeles Environmental 
Justice Network 
 

Cynthia Medina 
Co-Director 
Del Amo Action Committee  

Martha Camacho-Rodriguez 
Educator/Organizer SEE 
Social Eco Education 

      Veronica Padilla 
Executive Director 
Pacoima Beautiful 

 
Robina Suwol 
Executive Director 
California Safe Schools 

 
Angela Mooney D’Arcy 
Executive Director  
Sacred Places Institute  

 
Roberto Morales 
Chair 
Nature for All 

   
  Yvonne (Martinez) Watson 
  Chair, Environmental Justice Committee 
  Sierra Club Angeles Chapter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Sally Magnani, Senior Assistant Attorney General, sally.magnani@doj.ca.gov 
 
 
   

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
16 CALENVIROSCREEN 3.0, https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30 (last visited June 4, 
2018). 



April 2019

Analyzing Southern California 
Supply Investments from a 

Human Right to Water Perspective
The Proposed Poseidon Ocean Water 
Desalination Plant in Orange County



Authorship
Gregory Pierce, Associate Director of Research, UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation

Nicholas Chow, Project Manager, UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation

Kyra Gmoser-Daskalakis, Graduate Student Researcher, UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation

Peter Roquemore, Graduate Student Researcher, UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation

Nichole Heil, Graduate Student Researcher, UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation

Acknowledgments
The UCLA Luskin Center developed this study with funding support from Resources Legacy Fund. 

Thank you to Christian Zarate at the UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation for design and layout.

Disclaimer
The statements and conclusions presented are those of the grantee and not necessarily those of 
Resources Legacy Fund or the other aforementioned agencies and individuals. The mention of 
commercial products, their source, or their use in connection with material reported herein is 
not to be construed as actual or implied endorsement of such products.

For More Information
Contact Gregory Pierce at gpierce@luskin.ucla.edu or (310) 267-5435.

www.innovation.luskin.ucla.edu

© April 2019 by the Regents of the University of California, Los Angeles. All rights reserved. 
Printed in the United States.



Analyzing Southern California Supply Investments from a Human Right to Water Perspective 1 

Executive Summary 
In 2012, California Governor Brown signed Assembly Bill 685 into law, confirming California’s 
unique commitment among U.S. states to ensuring a Human Right to Water (HRW) for every 
individual in the state. This bill recognizes that “every human being has the right to safe, clean, 
affordable, and accessible water.” As many water systems consider investing in new or enhanced 
sources of water supply to meet their own water security goals, it is more important than ever 
to assess the household-level Human Right to Water (HRW) impacts of these investments.

This report analyzes the likely impacts of one proposed strategy for greater local water security 
on environmental justice and HRW concerns in Orange County. We examine the likely impact of 
desalinated ocean water supply on the county’s disadvantaged households based on a proposed 
agreement for Poseidon Resources LLC (Poseidon) to sell 56,000 acre feet of desalinated ocean 
water per year to the Orange County Water District (OCWD) for a period of 30 years.1 We assess 
this potential agreement in the context of a broader suite of water security and local water 
reliance strategies currently being pursued by nearly all major water suppliers across the Southern 
California region. This analysis can be used not only to inform public knowledge regarding the 
likely impacts of the Poseidon agreement, but also to evaluate the costs and benefits of various 
water security and local water reliance strategies in similarly water-scarce regions.

Our analysis of the likely impacts of the Poseidon agreement on disadvantaged households 
includes an assessment of: a) how this new source of supply would impact the landscape of 
existing HRW outcomes in Orange County; b) short-term and medium-term projections of the 
expected cost of Poseidon agreement water (Agreement Water) as compared to imported water 
and other locally generated water supply options; and c) the role the county’s water systems 
will likely play via their rate-making decisions in either passing through or shielding the greater 
costs of new supply to low-income households consuming modest amounts of water.

While potential positive HRW benefits from desalinated ocean water can occur in certain 
contexts, we find that no such benefits can be plausibly realized by the Poseidon agreement 
in Orange County. Nearly all of the county’s households are connected to community 
water systems which already provide high-quality, reliable water service and thus would 
not see supply improvement from ocean desalination. Those served by the county’s small 
underperforming systems, whose lower-quality water might be improved through new 
desalinated supply, will not be served by the proposed agreement to purchase desalinated 
water. The only plausible impact of Agreement Water on disadvantaged households in the 
county will be a decrease in affordability due to higher system rates.

The final aggregate cost of water from the Poseidon agreement is not yet determined and we 
do not independently estimate the aggregate cost impact of the agreement on ratepayers. We 
do find that all available reputable sources—including Orange County Water District (OCWD), 

1  From here forward we use the terms “Poseidon agreement” as shorthand for this agreement, and “Agree-
ment Water” to describe the water that would be provided to the OCWD via this agreement.



2 UCLA Luskin Center for Innovation | April 2019

Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) and Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD)—
show the upfront unit cost of water from the agreement to be substantially more expensive 
than the unit cost of all other local supply options. Our own analysis also yielded no evidence 
to reasonably project that Agreement Water will be cost competitive with any incremental 
supply investments for the next several decades. After this time, cost projections (and potential 
water supply options) are inherently uncertain. Moreover, the comparison between the cost of 
Agreement Water and imported WaterFix supply depends on several assumptions given recent 
changes in cost estimates. Only in an unlikely scenario where alternative water supply costs rise 
rapidly, Agreement Water costs grow minimally, and the Metropolitan Water District authorizes 
a proposed $450 million subsidy to the project, could the Poseidon agreement yield a cost-
competitive water supply. Among other reasons, its cost risk has led several independent expert 
assessments to judge Agreement Water to be the least desirable supply option for the county.

We next outline the potential scope of pass-through rate increases stemming from the Poseidon 
agreement on the county’s disadvantaged households. We use data on each of the county 
drinking water systems’ existing rate structures and levels, as well as a review of existing rate 
cases in Orange County, and provide a retrospective assessment of the pass-through rate 
changes arising from a separate, finalized Poseidon agreement in San Diego County. Progressive 
rate restructuring could theoretically shield low-income households, with only basic household 
water use, from any system-level cost increases resulting from the Poseidon agreement. 
However, we find that such equitable rate restructuring in the event of supply cost increases is 
uncommon and discouraged by rate consultants, partly due to concerns with Proposition 218 
requirements.

Accordingly, we conclude that the Poseidon agreement will likely make drinking water for 
disadvantaged households in Orange County moderately to severely less affordable. It would 
yield no offsetting HRW benefits as compared to the continued pursuit of alternative local water 
supplies and demand management options which have historically proven to be more efficient 
and affordable. We also conclude that more research and policy innovation must be undertaken 
to enable and encourage water systems to make progressive rate structure reforms to shield 
disadvantaged households from the impact of water supply portfolio-related cost increases in 
Southern California over the coming decades.

breznik
Highlight



           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       

 
June 25, 2018 
 
 
Zita Yu, Ph.D., P.E. 
Project Manager 
West Basin Municipal Water District 
17140 South Avalon Boulevard, Suite 210 
Carson, California 90746-1296  
 
 
Sent via e-mail to: DesalEIR@WestBasin.org 
 
 
RE: Environmental Organizations and Green Business Comments on West Basin 
Municipal Water District Ocean Desalination Draft Environmental Impact Report  
 
 
Dear Dr. Yu:  
 
We, the undersigned environmental organizations and green businesses, thank you for this 
opportunity to comment on West Basin Municipal Water District’s (West Basin) Draft 



2 
 

Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) for the proposed Ocean Water Desalination Project (Project). 
 
While we are not opposed to ocean desalination as a source of potable water in appropriate 
circumstances, we are opposed to West Basin pursuing ocean desalination until the agency has 
exhausted more cost-effective and environmentally sound options to promote local water self-
sufficiency, including:     

•   Significant additional conservation and efficiency measure to alleviate demand;  
•   Greater investment in multi-benefit stormwater capture and use; 
•   Expanding West Basin’s successful water recycling program; and 
•   Remediation of groundwater in the West Coast Basin through brackish desalination.  

In addition to ocean desalination’s detrimental impacts to marine ecosystems, especially when 
open-ocean intakes are used as is the case of with the proposed Project, it is the most energy-
intensive and expensive method of meeting our local water supply needs. At a time when we 
must be doing everything in our power to reduce our carbon footprint, West Basin must not 
invest its limited resources in a project whose energy demand will exacerbate climate change 
impacts, the burden of which will disproportionately impact the communities least equipped to 
deal with them.  Likewise, West Basin should not be pursuing the most expensive option 
available to enhance local water supplies when much more cost-effective options exist.  
In a world of limited resources, committing valuable money, time, and expertise to ocean 
desalination is not only unwise, but inevitably hinders or even precludes more environmentally 
and financially sound options. For these reasons, ocean desalination should only be pursued as an 
option-of-last-resort.1  
 
CEQA requires that an agency avoid turning the environmental impact report into a post-hoc 
justification for its preferred alternative.  (Save Tara v. W. Hollywood (2008) 45 Cal.4th 116, 
136.)  We are, thus, particularly concerned that the DEIR only analyzes three “build” alternatives 
and all three alternatives evaluated involve construction and operation of an ocean 
desalination plant.  The DEIR does not allow a fully informed consideration of the Project by 
the public or the decisionmakers.  The analyses, in several areas, are inadequate for failing to 
evaluate significant adverse environmental impacts and adequately mitigate for such impacts.  In 
many areas, the DEIR also lacks substantial evidence to support its findings of less than 
significant impacts.  We thank you for your careful consideration of the comments below.  
 

Energy Impacts 
 

•   The Project would result in the inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary consumption 
of energy and fails to comply with the directive of CEQA Guidelines Appendix F.  
Ocean desalination is the most energy-intensive option for increasing local water 

                                                
1 See CAL. STATE ASSEMBLY SELECT COMM. ON WATER CONSUMPTION AND ALTERNATIVE SOURCES, NEW SOURCES 
FOR CALIFORNIA’S WATER SUPPLY 3 (2016), available at  https://mavensnotebook.com/wp-
content/uploads/2016/04/Final-Report-Select-Committee-on-Water-Consumption-and-Alternative-Sources.pdf 
(making the policy recommendation that desalination should be used as an option of last resort). 



3 
 

supplies.2  The 20 MGD plant would have the electricity demand of as much as 18,185 
homes and the 60 MGD plant would have the electricity demand of as many as 59,751 
homes.3  In stark contrast, water conservation results in energy savings.  For example, 
between June 2015 and May 2016, when statewide conservation measures were in place, 
California’s conservation rate of 24.5% over 2013 levels resulted in electricity savings of 
1,830 GWh or the electricity use of 274,000 average Californian homes for a year.4  In 
light of the water supply opportunities available that would have significantly less energy 
impacts or could even result in energy savings, the Project would result in the inefficient, 
wasteful, and unnecessary consumption of energy.    

 
•   The DEIR energy analysis does not present substantial evidence to support its 

conclusion that the impacts from the most energy-intensive option for increasing 
local water supplies would have a less than significant energy impact.  For example, 
the analysis does not evaluate the potential significant impacts from the SCE electrical 
power grid upgrades that the DEIR states are anticipated to be required to supply the 
Project’s operations (DEIR, 5.5-21) and does not account for the recent SoCalGas Aliso 
Canyon natural gas storage facility blowout and limits the grid operator may now impose 
on usage under certain peak demand conditions.5   
 

Greenhouse Gas Impacts 
 

•   The Project’s greenhouse gas (GHG) impacts should be considered significant.  The 
Project would result in a greater contribution of GHG emissions into our atmosphere, 
than importing water over hundreds of miles through the State Water Project.6  Based on 
the 2014 power mix of Southern California Edison (SCE),7 the 20 MGD ocean 
desalination plant would contribute as much as 44,702 metric tons of CO2e 
emissions per year and the 60 MGD plant would contribute as much as 146,879 
metric tons per year.8   
 

•   While the DEIR states “West Basin is committed to reducing the Project’s GHG 
emissions to ‘net zero’ (net carbon neutral) compared to continued use of imported water 

                                                
2 HEATHER COOLEY & MATTHEW HEBERGER, KEY ISSUES IN SEAWATER DESALINATION IN CALIFORNIA: ENERGY 
AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (Pacific Institute 2013), available at  http://pacinst.org/wp-
content/uploads/2013/05/desal-energy-ghg-full-report.pdf; NAT. RES. DEF. COUNCIL, ET AL., PROCEED WITH 
CAUTION II: CALIFORNIA’S DROUGHTS AND DESALINATION IN CONTEXT (2016), available at 
https://www.nrdc.org/sites/default/files/california-drought-desalination-2-ib.pdf. 
3 POWERS ENGINEERING, ASSESSMENT OF ENERGY INTENSITY AND GREENHOUSE EMISSIONS OF PROPOSED WEST 
BASIN DESALINATION PLANT AND WATER SUPPLY ALTERNATIVES 19 (2018), available at 
https://www.smarterwaterla.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Powers_Engineering_2018_WB_Desal.pdf. 
4 Edward S. Spang et al., 2018 Environ. Res. Lett. 13 014016, 2, 5–6. 
5 See POWERS ENGINEERING, supra note 3, at 23.  
6 POWERS ENGINEERING, supra note 3, at 22. 
7 Id. at 16. 
8 Id. at 21.   



4 
 

supplied by M[etropolitan] W[ater] D[istrict]” (emphasis added DEIR, 5.7-20.), the 
DEIR fails to provide any evidence that MWD will reduce the volume of imported 
water on a one-to-one basis as a result of the Project.  As a result, the DEIR lacks 
substantial evidence to show the Project’s GHG contribution could be reduced to “net 
zero,” and the resulting mitigation proposed is inadequate.  

Energy and GHG Mitigation  

•   The DEIR fails to adopt adequate mitigation measures for energy and GHG 
impacts.  In light of the alternative water supply options available that could avoid the 
significant energy and GHG impacts of the Project, including conservation, stormwater 
capture, recycling, and remediating brackish groundwater, the DEIR should have 
analyzed the Project’s impacts in comparison to such alternatives, and ultimately, 
proposed mitigation that reduced the Project’s GHG emissions below that of imported 
water.   

Land Use 
 

•   The Project would conflict with El Segundo’s Local Coastal Program (ESLCP), and 
therefore, land use impacts should be considered significant.  The ESLCP may need 
to be amended before a coastal development permit could be issued for the Project 
because the ESLCP only anticipated minor modifications of existing energy facilities and 
construction of shoreline protective structures, not major construction of a new ocean 
desalination facility.  

•   With the hazards of sea-level rise and the shoreline’s growing susceptibility to erosion, it 
is unwise to invest half-a-billion dollars to build infrastructure on the coast that will 
exacerbate climate change.  

Marine Biological Resources & Hydrology and Water Quality 
 

•   The DEIR uses an improper baseline to determine significant marine biological and water 
quality impacts by arbitrarily limiting the environmental setting to a small rectangular 
portion of the Santa Monica Bay.  As a result of this limited marine study area, the DEIR 
fails to account for the interconnectivity between ecosystems within Santa Monica 
Bay as a whole and thus, fails to analyze a reasonable scope of impacts. In particular, the 
DEIR fails to analyze the significant impacts to the network of Marine Protected Areas in 
the Bay—Mugu Lagoon to Latigo Point Area of Special Biological Significance, the 
Point Dume State Marine Conservation Area and State Marine Reserve, the Point Vicente 
SMCA, and the Abalone Cove SMCA. 	  

•   While the DEIR discusses the requirements of the California Ocean Plan Desalination 
Amendment (Ocean Plan), it does not incorporate any of these requirements as a 
threshold of significance in the marine biological resources or hydrology and water 
quality analyses.  As the Ocean Plan is the regulatory framework specifically adopted to 
address such impacts from ocean desalination facilities, the DEIR should have 



5 
 

evaluated the extent to which the Project will “minimize intakes and mortality to all 
forms of marine life”9 and applied this as a threshold of significance. 	  

•   The Ocean Plan requires desalination plants be sited, designed, utilize technology, and be 
operated to “minimize intakes and mortality to all forms of marine life.”10 Once-through 
cooling (OTC) infrastructure was decommissioned due to its adverse environmental 
impacts.  Because the Project, proposes to use this decommissioned intake and discharge 
infrastructure, the Project’s intake and discharge will have adverse environmental 
impacts. Use of this decommissioned OTC infrastructure is not appropriate. 

•   The DEIR does not present substantial evidence to support its conclusion that impacts to 
marine biological resources and water quality would be less than significant.  For 
example, the mere fact that the Project’s intake and brine discharge technology is 
permissible under the Ocean Plan does not preclude the potential for significant impacts. 
In fact, the Pacific Institute reports that the “impacts of impingement and entrainment 
from desalination plants on the marine environment are not well understood” and 
may result in significant loss of biological productivity.11  With respect to brine 
discharge impacts, there is also a “lack of baseline ecological data,” but studies “clearly 
demonstrate the potential for acute and chronic toxicity and small-scale alterations 
to community structure in marine environments.”12  

Environmental Justice 
 
•   Out of a 1000+ page draft environmental impact report, only half of a single page is 

dedicated to analysis of environmental justice impacts and mitigation measures. (See 
DEIR, 6-13.)  

•   The DEIR analysis fails to account for multiple low-income or minority populations 
(such as Carson, 82.1% of which is disadvantaged communities, and Inglewood, 
100% of which is disadvantaged communities) by analyzing only census tracts where 
aboveground infrastructure would be implemented (El Segundo and Hawthorne).  (DEIR, 
5-13.)  

•   The DEIR compares the Project’s impacts on census tracts in Hawthorne to impacts on 
the city of Hawthorne as a whole.  This is an unreasonably limited environmental setting 
and fails to account for the Project’s impacts on low-income or minority populations 
in West Basin’s service area as whole, compared to the Project’s impacts on affluent 
communities in West Basin’s service area.  (DEIR, 6-11.)   

                                                
9 See ST. WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD, FINAL STAFF REPORT INCLUDING THE FINAL SUBSTITUTE 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION FOR THE AMENDMENT TO THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL PLAN FOR THE 
WATERS OF CALIFORNIA, ADDRESSING DESALINATION FACILITY INTAKES, BRINE DISCHARGES, AND THE 
INCORPORATION OF OTHER NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, Adopted May 6, 2015, available at 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2015/rs2015_0033_sr_apx.pdf. 
10 Id. at 11.  
11 HEATHER COOLEY ET AL., KEY ISSUES IN SEAWATER DESALINATION IN CALIFORNIA: MARINE IMPACTS 3 (Pac. 
Inst. 2013), available at http://pacinst.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/desal-marine-imapcts-full-report.pdf.    
12 Id. at 14.  



6 
 

•   The Project’s significant GHG emission contributions will exacerbate climate change, 
and disproportionately impact low-income and minority communities, which are 
least able to adapt to or recover from climate change impacts.13  

•   Many low-income and minority communities in West Basin’s service area already suffer 
from poor air quality. 14  While the DEIR discusses SCE’s power mix, it does not identify 
the specific plants on which SCE relies.  Thus, the DEIR does not analyze the impacts 
to the communities that will be most heavily impacted by the Project’s high energy 
demand. 

•   The half-a-billion dollar cost of building the Project will inevitably increase water rates 
for West Basin’s ratepayers.  This increase in water rates will disproportionately 
impact low-income populations in West Basin’s service area relative to the more 
affluent populations.   

•   Further, there is significant disparity in the residential per capita water usage (R-GPCD) 
between the affluent communities and the low-income communities in West Basin’s 
service area.  For example, affluent communities such as Palos Verdes use upwards of 
200 R-GPCD, while customers in Hawthorne use only 62 R-GPCD, (DEIR, 7-13.).15  
The Project would effectively result in low-income communities subsidizing affluent 
communities’ excessive water consumption.  

 
Cumulative Impacts 

 
•   While the DEIR provides a “Cumulative Projects List” (DEIR, Table 4-1) of past, 

present, and probable future projects/development in the Project area, the DEIR does not 
address how the combined nature of such projects would impact the region. The 
mere fact that such future projects would be required to conform to the requirements of 
applicable regulations, does not necessarily preclude the potential for significant impacts.   
 

Alternatives to the Project 
 

•   The only alternatives the DEIR analyzes are variations on building an ocean 
desalination plant.  The DEIR does not analyze conservation, stormwater capture, 
recycling, brackish groundwater desalination, or any combination of these water 
supply options in its alternatives analysis.  

•   The DEIR relies on an unsubstantiated need for the development of 21,500 acre-feet 
per year (AFY) of new, potable water supply.  Neither West Basin’s 2015 Urban 
Water Management Plan nor MWD’s Integrated Water Resources Plan support the need 

                                                
13 U.S. GLOBAL CHANGE RESEARCH PROGRAM, THE IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON HUMAN HEALTH IN THE 
UNITED STATES: A SCIENTIFIC ASSESSMENT (2016), available at https://health2016.globalchange.gov/.  
14 See CALENVIROSCREEN 3.0, https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30 (last visited June 8, 
2018). 
15 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD, August Supplier Conservation, 9, 10 (2017), 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/conservation_portal/docs/2017oct/supplierconservation_10
0317.pdf. 



7 
 

for 21,500 AF of new potable water supply.  Yet, the DEIR includes a requirement that 
21,500 acre-feet per year (AFY) of new, potable water supply be developed.  This 21,500 
AFY requirement is not disclosed as a project objective, and instead, operates as a 
shadow objective, which the DEIR uses to eliminate conservation, stormwater capture, 
and recycling as alternatives to the Project. 	  

•   Conservation, stormwater capture, recycling, and brackish groundwater 
desalination are alternatives that would increase local water supplies, avoid the 
significant adverse environmental impacts of the Project, including the energy, GHG, 
marine, water quality, and environmental justice impact, and would meet most of the 
DEIR’s stated project objectives.  The DEIR alternatives analysis is inadequate for 
failing to, at least, analyze a hybrid alternative that includes a combination of such 
alternatives. 

•   In particular, West Basin has been a leader in recycled water with its Edward C. Little 
Water Recycling Facility (ECLWRF) that currently recycles approximately 35 MGD of 
secondary effluent from the Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant. While we applaud West 
Basin’s efforts to increase recycling at ECLWRF to 70 MGD, ECLWRF is “designed for 
ultimate expansion to 100 MGD.”16  Expanding recycling at ECLWRF to its 
maximum capacity would more than eliminate the need for the 20 MGD plant.  

 
For the reasons outlined above, as well as those expressed in Los Angeles Waterkeeper and Heal 
the Bay’s comment letters, we respectfully request that the DEIR be revised and recirculated.  
We also strongly encourage West Basin to employ a Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, and Restore 
approach to developing its water supply portfolio and comprehensively explore the numerous 
opportunities it has for increasing conservation, stormwater capture, recycling, and brackish 
groundwater remediation, instead of pursuing ocean desalination at this time.  Once again, thank 
you for your careful consideration of our comments.  
 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Melissa Kelly  
Los Angeles Waterkeeper  
 
On behalf of:  
 

Craig Cadwallader 
Surfrider, South Bay Chapter 

Conner Everts 
Desal Response Group  
 

Nancy Shrodes  
Heal the Bay  

Marcus Eriksen 
5 Gyres 

                                                
16 CH2M HILL, WATER REUSE CASE HISTORY: WEST BASIN WATER RECYCLING/PETROLEUM REFINERY REUSE 
PROGRAM (WATER MATCH).  



8 
 

Merle Moshiri 
President 
Residents for Responsible 
Desalination   

Susan Jordan 
Executive Director 
California Coastal 
Protection Network 
 

Conner Everts 
Environmental 
Water Caucus 

Veronica Padilla 
Pacoima Beautiful 
 

Sherry Lear and Damien Luzzo 
Co-Organizers 
350 South Bay Los Angeles 

Marco Gonzalez 
Coastal Environmental 
Rights Foundation 
 

Jonathan Parfrey 
Climate Resolve 

Pamela Berstler 
Green Gardens 
Group 

Sean Bothwell 
Policy Director 
California Coastkeeper Alliance 

Graham Hamilton 
Surfrider, Los Angeles 
Chapter 
 

Finian Makepeace 
Kiss the Ground 

      Charming Evelyn 
Sierra Club 
 
 

Pam Heatherington  
Board of Directors 
Environmental Center of San 
Diego 
 

Siobhan Dolan 
Southern California 
Watershed Alliance 

Azita Yazdani 
President and CEO 
Exergy Systems, 
Inc. 

Melanie Winter 
The River Project 

      Leslie Mintz Tamminen 
      Director 

Seventh Generation Advisors 

Joseph K. Lyou 
President & CEO 
Coalition for Clean Air 

Adam Scow 
Food and Water 
Watch 

Dan Silver 
Endangered 
Habitats League 

 
Stephen Mejia-Carranza 
Friend of the LA River 

 
Alison Lipman 
SELVA International 

 
Mia Lehrer 
Studio-MLA 

 
Anna Ehrgott 
Sagebrush 

    
 



Energy 
intensity 

of various 
water 
supply 
options



The Most Expensive Option



5



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 
First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    

 

 

September 30, 2019  
 

OVERVIEW  
 

This quarterly report represents the City’s General Fund 
revenues and expenditures through September 30, 2019. 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 

The General Fund supports the day-to-day activities of the 
City, which includes general government, public safety, 
municipal services, and public works.  The planning and 
community development, recreation and community 
services departments were separated from the General 
Fund this fiscal year and are accounted for in their own 
enterprise funds; however, contract services for crossing 
guards are still included in the General Fund.  The 
Operating Transfers budgeted in the General Fund for the 
20% housing set aside (Dept 410) and support for the 
recreation and senior programs (Dept 510) have been 
separated into a General Fund Support budget since these 
transfers are not related to any specific department.  The 
General fund activities are primarily supported from 
motor vehicle in-lieu, sales and use, district transactional 
(Measure L), utility users and property taxes. 
General Fund Financial Condition:  With a 60-day 
accrual period, any revenue and expenditures due at June 
30 are accrued back to the previous fiscal year  Therefore, 
the first quarter financial results do not reflect a three 
month period; with the exception of payroll costs which 
only 50% of one pay period was accrued back to fiscal 
year 2018-19.  As of September 30, General Fund 
revenues are at 6% of the budget estimate and 
expenditures are at 13%; compared to 6% and 15.7% 
during the same time period in FY18-19.  
 

    
 

Revenue. The General Fund accounts for about 54% of 
the City’s total revenues.  The first quarter General Fund 
revenues are consistent with the same quarter last fiscal 
year and are meeting budget expectations overall. 
 

   

 

 Motor Vehicle In-Lieu Tax: The additional transfer of 
property tax revenue in lieu of State Vehicle License Fee is 
received equally on 1/31 and 5/31 with one additional 
adjustment during the year. Therefore, the first installments 
is not anticipated until the third quarter of the fiscal year. 

 

 Sales and Use Taxes: Sales tax receipts are 12.3% lower 
than the same period last year.  The budget assumes a 0.75% 
increase over prior year; however, due to processing delays 
at the State, the fiscal year 2018-19 distributions included 
sales tax collections from the previous fiscal year.  No 
budget adjustment is being recommended at this time, but 
we will closely monitor the receipts and inform Council of 
any changes in the future. 

   

 Sales Transaction Tax- Measure L: Since it’s April 1, 2019 
effective date, the City has received $926,101 from the ¾ 
cent district transaction tax attributed to the passage of 
Measure L.  Assuming this is the pattern of revenue to be 
received for the fiscal year, we anticipate meeting and 
slightly exceeding the $2.1 million anticipated revenue for 
the fiscal year. 

 

Expenditures. At the end of the first quarter, General Fund 
expenditures overall are on target; however, three items were 
note-worthy.  Actual expenditures for General Operations was 
at 38% of the budget, which is attributed to the annual 
unfunded PERS liability payment made in full at the 
beginning of the fiscal year.  Personnel costs allocated to the 
General Fund for Public Works Administration and 
Engineering both will exceed the appropriation budget for the 
year.  The allocations will be reviewed and adjustments to 
these budgets will be proposed at mid-year. 
 

    

For more information:  This summary is based on detailed 
information from the City’s financial management system.  
For any questions about this report please contact Marla L. 
Pendleton, CPA, Director of Finance / City Treasurer at 310-
973-3241.



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 
First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    

 

 

Following are recommended budget adjustments for Council consideration and approval. 
 
Authorization for Use of Park Development Funds 
 
On September 3, 2019, the Park Development Fee Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 was 
presented to Council informing them the unexpended balance of $33,173.69 was available for the restricted use 
of park development and the need to identify viable park improvement project(s) for the use of the collected fee.  
Since this time, the Community Development Director has identified a viable project and has requested funding 
to install five water bottle filling stations at the City parks.  The total estimated project cost is $28,026 which 
includes $18,026 for the water bottle filling stations and an estimated $10,000 for installation.  Quotes are 
currently being received for the installation services.  In order to perform the water bottle filling station project, 
the following budget adjustment is recommended: 
 
 
Increase appropriations: 
236-510-550.510 Park Dev Fund- Com Srvs- Park Improvements   $  28,026 
 
 
Establishing Budget for Code Enforcement Abatement 
 
In order to resolve some of the long-term outstanding Code Enforcement cases, the City has determined that 
procuring contractor services is the quickest and easiest solution to remedy incomplete home improvement 
construction projects.  In these rare circumstances, Municipal Services will work with those in violation to 
resolve the case.  If determined necessary, the city will then pay for the services and seek reimbursement.  In 
order to approach the resolution in this new manner, budgeted appropriations are needed to cover the initial 
services.  Based on the outstanding cases estimated to complete this fiscal year, an appropriation budget and 
corresponding reimbursement budget is requested in the amount of $40,000.  Following is the recommended 
budget adjustment: 
 
 
Increase appropriations: 
100-300-540.170 GF Municipal Services- Abatement Costs    $ 40,000 
 
Increase revenue: 
100-000-430.502 GF - Abatement Recovery      $ 40,000   
  
 
Transfer Designated Funds for Development Impact Fee Study 
 
On May 6, 2019, Council approved setting aside, through General Fund designation, $1,400,000, to update 
elements of the Comprehensive General Plan, Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan and an Environmental 
Impact Report over a three year period.  This was noted in the adopted Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget with a 
comment that the funding would also be used for a Development Impact Fee Study, rather than specifically 
budgeting an additional $40,000 to cover the fee study.  An agreement with Willdan Financial Services for 
Development Impact Fee Nexus Study was approved by Council on August 5, 2019 not to exceed $31,360; 
however, designated funds has not been release and appropriations established to pay the contracted costs.  A 
budget recommendation to undesignate from the General Fund, appropriate in the Community Development 
budget, and transfer money between funds in the amount of $31,360 is requested.    



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 
First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    

 

 

Increase appropriations: 
279-410-540.200 Community Dev - Special Expenses     $ 31,360 
 
Increase Operating Transfer from General Fund: 
279-410-480.100 Community Dev - Operating Transfer-In    $ 31,360 
 
 
 
Increase Operating Transfer to Community Development: 
100-000-560.100 General Fund - Operating Transfer-Out    $ 31,360 
 
Decrease Fund Balance Designation 
100-000-300.410 General Fund – Designated for City Gen Plan   $ 31,360 
 
 
Establishing Budget For Measure A and Proposition A Projects and Reimbursement 
 
In November 2016 Los Angeles County voters approved Measure A authorizing an annual special tax of .015 
cents per square foot of building floor area on all taxable real property in the County to be dedicated local 
funding for park, recreation, and open space projects and annual project maintenance.  Since the first allocation 
in fiscal year 2018-19, the City of Lawndale has received annual formula-based allocations.  These funds could 
not be spent until Proposition A money had been fully expended; which it was as of June 30, 2019.  In order to 
expend the allocations, it is recommended to open a separate fund for tracking allowable expenditures, 
reimbursement revenue and the outstanding balance available for Measure A projects and maintenance.  The 
budget will reflect the available appropriations allocated to the City and any unexpended amounts at the end of 
each fiscal year will be continued into the next fiscal year for budget purposes.  Annual allocations may accrue 
up to five years prior to expending.  Below are the annual allocations available to date which is recommended to 
budget.   
 
 FY 2018-19 FY2019-20 Total 
Community-based Park Investment 
Program Allocation (Category 1) 90,110.95 94,198.49 184,309.44 
Neighborhood Parks, Healthy 
Communities, & Urban Greening 
Allocation (Category 2) 66,867.41 69,900.60 136,768.01 
Total Allocation 156,978.36 164,099.09 321,077.45 
Maintenance & Servicing 21,786.34 22,774.59 44,560.93 
Total Measure A  178,764.70 186,873.68 365,638.38 

 
Increase revenue: 
281-000-465.451 Measure A – Grant Revenue      $ 365,638.38   
 
Increase appropriations: 
281-510-580.200 Meas A - Community-based Cat 1     $ 184,309.44 
281-510-580.210 Meas A - Neighborhood Pks Cat 2        136,768.01 
281-510-580.220 Meas A - Maintenance & Servicing          44,560.93 
            $ 365,638.38 



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 
First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    

 

 

In addition, Proposition A will continue to have small amounts annually available to fund maintenance and 
servicing of funded park projects.  For 2019-20, there is $3,951.09 available which the amount was previously 
unknown and unbudgeted.  The following budget adjustment is recommended to track the available funding. 
Increase revenue: 
257-000-465.451 LA Co Pks Maint Grant- Grant Revenue    $ 3,951.09   
 
Increase appropriations: 
257-000-580.220 LA Co Pks Maint Grant- Maint & Servicing    $ 3,951.09   
 
 
Public, Educational and Government (PEG) Access Fees Available to Expend 
 
On May 15, 2017, Council approved an interfund loan between the General Fund and the Lawndale Cable 
Usage Corporation (LCUC- Fund 217) pledging future Public, Educational and Government (PEG) Access fees 
for partial reimbursement of the cable editing room upgrade project and cable video van.  To date, the capital 
projects have been fully paid leaving a balance of $61,756 of PEG fee money available as of June 30, 2019 and 
an estimated $40,000 available from 2019-20 projected revenue.   Therefore, the operating transfer of $40,000 
budgeted from LCUC to the General Fund will not be necessary and a budget adjustment to remove this from 
the budget is requested.  In addition, Council may want to consider and recommend use of the $101,756 
available.  PEG fees are restricted to finance capital equipment for PEG programming, which could include 
improvements to the Council chamber video equipment.  
 
Decrease Operating Transfer to General Fund: 
100-000-480.100 General Fund- Operating Transfer-In     $ 40,000   
 
Decrease Operating Transfer from LCUC: 
217-170-560.100 LCUV- Operating Transfer-Out     $ 40,000   
 
 
Inglewood Avenue Project Reimbursement from School District 
 
As part of the Inglewood Avenue Corridor Widening Project, the City removed/ reconstructed three existing 
driveways in the front of Lawndale High School for a cost of $41,000 which the School District has agreed to 
reimburse the City.  A budget adjustment is recommended for the reimbursement revenue and to add the 
funding back to the project. 
 
Increase revenue: 
207-000-470.100 Prop C – Local Transit Assist 
     Other Gov Agencies Revenue  $ 41,000  
 
Increase appropriations: 
 207-310-700.151 Prop C – Local Transit Assist: 

 Inglewd Ave Corr Wide Phase I   $ 41,000  
 



6







Resolution No. CC-1911-051 
Authorizing Application for and Receipt of 
SB2 Planning Grants Program Funds 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-1911-051  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR AND RECEIPT OF 
SB 2 PLANNING GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development 
(Department) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated March 28, 2019, for its 
Planning Grants Program (PGP); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale desires to submit a project 
application for the PGP program to accelerate the production of housing and will submit a 2019 
PGP grant application as described in the Planning Grants Program NOFA and SB 2 Planning 
Grants Program Guidelines released by the Department for the PGP Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under the Senate 
Bill 2 Planning Grants Program established by the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund (as 
described in Health and Safety Code section 50470 et seq. (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017 (SB 2)) 
in connection with the PGP Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager, or his 
designee, to apply for and submit to the Department a completed 2019 Planning Grants Program 
application seeking a grant in the amount of $160,000. 

SECTION 2. In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the 
Department, the City Manager or designee is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a State 
of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $160,000, and any and all other 
documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the PGP grant, the 
City of Lawndale’s obligations related thereto, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the “PGP 
Grant Documents”). 

SECTION 3. The City of Lawndale shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified 
in the Standard Agreement, the SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and any applicable 
PGP guidelines published by the Department. Funds are to be used for allowable expenditures as 
specifically identified in the Standard Agreement. The application in full is incorporated as part of 
the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines 
represented in the application will be enforceable through the executed Standard Agreement. The 
City of Lawndale hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses in the manner presented in the 
application as approved by the Department and in accordance with the Planning Grants NOFA, 
the Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants Program Application. 



Resolution No. CC-1911-051 
Authorizing Application for and Receipt of 
SB2 Planning Grants Program Funds 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 4th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the 
City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-
1911-051 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 4th day of November, 2019, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
James Osborne, Mayor Pro Tem      
Pat Kearney       
Daniel Reid      
Bernadette Suarez      

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 





















































































7















Resolution No. CC-1911-052 
Residential Development Standards and Design Guidelines  1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-1911-052 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND DESIGN GUIDELINES AND 
RECOMMENDING A FINDING OF AN EXEMPTION FROM CEQA. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lawndale has prepared (“City”) Residential Development Standards and 
Design Guidelines (“Guidelines”) to improve the quality of life throughout the City’s residential 
neighborhoods by improving the quality of residential development; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Guidelines will ensure that residential development is compatible in mass, scale, 

and other design features with surrounding development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the easy to understand and illustrated Guidelines will assist residents, property 

owners, developers and designers in understanding and implementing the principles contained in the 
Guidelines to enhance the City’s residential neighborhoods; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 11, 2019 the Planning Commission held its third public hearing to 
review the Guidelines and recommended that the City Council adopt the Guidelines; and 
 

WHEREAS, evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in affecting said 
proposal, from all persons protesting the same and from members of the City staff, and the City Council 
has reviewed, analyzed, and studied said proposal. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council finds and determines that the recitals above are true and correct 
and incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
SECTION 2. The Residential Development Standards and Design Guidelines, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein  as “Attachment 1” are hereby approved and adopted as the City’s Guidelines. 
 

SECTION 3.  The City Council does hereby determine that the Guidelines are exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which provides that CEQA only applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment. Where, as here, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. 
 
 SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of passage and adoption. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 4th day of November, 2019. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 



Resolution No. CC-1911-052 
Residential Development Standards and Design Guidelines  2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the 
City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. 1911-
052 at its regular meeting held on the 4th day of November, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor       
James H. Osborne, Mayor Pro Tem      
Pat Kearny       
Daniel Reid       
Bernadette Suarez      

 
 
______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk   
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 

 
 









































































8



9



10



11


	19-11-04 reg.agn
	01. Warrants
	02. 19-10-21.min
	03. 19-08-05.lha.min
	04. Proposed Desalination Plant - Final EIR
	ADP1806.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	The Most Expensive Option


	05. Quarterly Budget Review FY20 Qtr1
	06. Authorize SB2 General Plan Grant Funds
	07. Residential Design Guidelines
	08. Council Attendance
	09. CS Appointment
	10. CS Lit
	11. LHA CS Property

	Back to Agenda: 


